Bighorn-Desert View Water Agency

Board of Directors Agency Office
Michael McBride, President 622 S. Jemez Trail
Judy Corl-Lorono, Vice President Yucca Valley, CA 92284-1440
Terry Burkhart, Secretary
J. Larry Coulombe, Director 760/364-2315 Phone
J. Dennis Staley, Director 760/364-3412 Fax
Marina D West, P.G., General Manager

A Public Agency www.bdvwa.org

Finance/Public Relations/Education
And Personnel Standing Committee
Special Meeting

Agenda
September 19, 2018 - 9:00 a.m.

Board Meeting Office
1720 N. Cherokee Trail, Landers, CA 92285

Committee Members: President McBride & Director Coulombe
The BDVWA Finance/Public Relations/Education & Personnel Committee meeting will be conducted in

strict compliance with the Brown Act. Members of the Board not assigned to this Committee who attend
may do so only as observers and may not participate in the meeting.

1. Call to Order

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll Call

4. Approval of the Agenda

Discussion and Action Items - The Committee and Staff will discuss the following items and
provide direction to staff, if so inclined.

The Public is invited to comment on any item on the agenda during discussion of that item.

When giving your public comment, please have your information prepared. If you wish to be
identified for the record then please state your name. Due to time constraints, each member of
the public will be allotted three-minutes to provide their public comment.

September 19, 2018 FPREP Meeting Agenda
Posted 09-14-2018
Page 10f 2



5. Drug & Alcohol Policy Update

6. Consent items - The following is expected to be routine and non-controversial and will be
acted on by the Committee members at one time without discussion, unless a member of
the Public or a Committee member requests that an item be held for discussion or further
action.

a. FPREP Committee Meeting Minutes, July 25, 2018
7. Public Comment Period

Any person may address the Committee on any matter within the Agency’s jurisdiction on
items not appearing on this agenda.

When giving your public comment, please have your information prepared. If you wish to
be identified for the record then please state your name. Due to time constraints, each
member of the public will be allotted three-minutes to provide their public comment. State
Law prohibits the Committee from discussing or taking action on items not included on the
agenda.

8. Verbal Reports

a. Committee Member Comments/Reports
b. General Manager Report

9. Adjournment

In accordance with the requirements of California Government Code Section 54954.2, this
agenda has been posted in the main lobby of the Bighorn-Desert View Water Agency, 622 S.
Jemez Trail, Yucca Valley, CA not less than 72 hours if prior to a Regular meeting, date and
time above; or in accordance with California Government Code Section 54956 this agenda has
been posted not less than 24 hours if prior to a Special meeting, date and time above.

As a general rule, agenda reports or other written documentation has been prepared or
organized with respect to each item of business listed on the agenda.

Copies of these materials and other disclosable public records in connection with an open
session agenda item, are also on file with and available for inspection at the Office of the
Agency Secretary, 622 S. Jemez Trail, Yucca Valley, California, during regular business hours,
8:00 A.M. to 4:30 P.M., Monday through Friday. If such writings are distributed to members of
the Board of Directors on the day of a Board meeting, the writings will be available at the
entrance to the Board of Directors meeting room at the Bighorn-Desert View Water Agency.
Internet: Once uploaded, agenda materials can also be viewed at www.bdvwa.org.

Public Comments: You may wish to submit your comments in writing to assure that you are able
to express yourself adequately. Per Government Code Section 54954.2, any person with a
disability who requires a modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, in
order to participate in the meeting, should contact the Board's Secretary at 760-364-2315 during
Agency business hours.

September 19, 2018 FPREP Meeting Agenda
Posted 09-14-2018
Page 20f 2



BIGHORN-DESERT VIEW
WATER AGENCY

Resolutlon No. 18R-XX
Adopted XX-XX-XXXX



PP E TP R LR W R 4 TR T, Y RS RO TR (PN TP B A L,

[INSERT TABLE OF CONTENTS]

PR AT YWY

T—— T T - ——T

—

=y



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

| The U. S. Department of Transportation (‘DOT”) and the Federal Highways
Administration (FMCSA) have published regulations (49 CFR 40 and 382)
mandating that the Agency test certain safety-sensitive employees who must
possess a commercial driver's license as a requirement of their job classification
for the illegal use of drugs and controlled substances, and the misuse of alcohol
in a variety of circumstances, subject to a complex scheme of procedural
safeguards. ;
To ensure compliance with these Federal mandate§, the Bighom-Desert View
Water Agency Drug and Alcohol Policy (“Policy”) hé s,be q\b[eated to incorporate

specific DOT Ppolicy language and testing m/ethd ologies._This Policy is to be
interpreted consisted with all applicable federél fequlations and law.

A7 i
Summary of DOT Requirements <:‘ 4 / > ‘\ \
U
1. The DOT has determined that “safet? §en/s;hve" functions are performed
by those who: - .
\ \“"«H '“"-—-\,‘\ '\ b

a—Operate nen—mve&e{é\ veh lles. that\f‘eqwre drivers to hold
commercLJ dnvers hce-_ €s_of W 10 drive aVehicle of any size used

yrt the ardelis material® found in the Hazardous

and which require the vehicle to _be

eﬁmpme it.
/ y )

H hese categ \Qﬁ mcl({ée contractors who are “Standing in the Shoes” of
Agency emplo

| comply w1thJJOT's decision that a 0.040 test resultant |s equwalent to a
positive test level which unquestionably denotes the presence of an
unacceptable level of alcohol in the system. The six (6) types of testing
which are required are:

¢ Pre-Employment
o Reasonable Suspicion

e Post Accident/Incident



e Random
e Return to Duty

e Follow-up
Random alcohol testing using an approved Evidential Breath Testing
device (EBT) will be utilizedintroduced.

3. The Ppolicy clearly identifies the time periods during which all employees
much be in compliance with the consumption pgftion of the alcohol rule.
An employee must not consume alcohol four (4) hours prior to performing
their job, anytime he/she is “on-call”, and u aen@hf{S) hours following an
accident or until the employee undergoesg post acgident test, whichever
occurs first. Use and ingestion of illggal (lncludanZ“lifiL not_limited to,
marijuana which remains __illegal Ar der federal IaW}illisi_t drugs are
prohibited at all times. A { =

&b

v’

4. Education and training must be pr‘g\‘nded Ao /af identified safety-sensitive
employees. Slxty~m|nutg3‘“~(60) on tﬁ& effects and consequences of
substance abuse on pers qal}g Ith, safet(and the work site as well as
indicators of substance ab beprowde&

/

 Teeeive an, addal‘lgﬁéT “12@ mlnutes of training on the
ra1 nd, perfon;ﬁapce indicators of substance abuse that

Supervisors mus
physical, be_ _'
are assoc d with ini ét]ng a re‘asonable suspicion drug/alcohol screen.

5. The PiaoI|cy“€!§&scr|be?()l;\e\l ds. of avior that constitute a refusal which
IhGiUdE‘%fUSH est, gjé ility to provide sufficient quantities of

w{to‘ étgsted without a valid medical explanation, tampering
atte

\i’mg to.adulterate the specimen or collection procedure, not
Ilec?ﬂa%?lte within the allotted time frame, or leaving the
out a valid reason before the tests have been

wi’th or
?epomng to th
e of an ac}: ent
cong\ucted ;
6. Pre-emp{é?méﬁt ’festlng applies to candidates for employment at the
Agency whp af/e seeking a_safety-sensitive position and all candidates
transferring into safety-sensitive positions.

7. The DOT requires that the Agency utilize a “Reasonable Suspicion”
standard. Examples of “Reasonable Suspicion” include, but are not
limited to, the following:

e Physical signs and symptoms consistent with prohibited substance
use, or misuse of alcohol, e.g. odor of alcohol, slurred speech, or
lack of coordination.



e Evidence of the manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession
or use of controlled substances, drugs, alcohol, or other prohibited
substances.

e Occurrence of a serious or potentially serious industrial accident
that may have been caused by the employee’s use of alcohol or
drugs.

e Fights (defined as physical contact),
disregard, or violations of, established safety
operating procedures.

saults, and flagrant
, security, or other

AU
8. Post Accident/ncident \”{v“"’
il
As soon as practicable following an®@ urrence mvolvn\q the
Agency will test for alcohol and %olled sub,stances for &
driver_if the accident occurred the di 1]
sensitive functions and involved thﬁ; human life. The Agency will
also test for alcohol for ead iver who receives a citation within
8 Und “local law for a moving traffic
VIoIatlon arising from the a~ and for colled substances for each

9. In accordance with DOT regulations, all safety-sensitive employees who
test positive for drugs or for alcohol at 0.040 or above and who, under this
Ppolicy, are allowed to return to work must pass a Return to Duty test prior
to being released for duty by a Substance Abuse Professional (SAP).



This drug/alcohol screen shall be ordered when:

The employee has previously failed a post-accident/incident

reasonable suspicionprebable—cause, return to work or random
screen.

The employee is returning from a drug and/or alcohol rehabilitation
program arranged by or made known to the Agency.

The employee has signed a treatment plan;, work resumption or
return to work agreement which requires thé screen.

il -
=
al=

ata - wallalalhdatilfa a YL T
¢oe - s 2 H-
a




PURPOSE

The Agency performs a vital service for the public. To ensure that this
service is delivered safely, efficiently and effectively, each Agency
employee has the responsibility to perform his/her duties in a safe,
conscientious, and courteous manner. This Ppolicy has been established
to comply with the Department of Transportation (DOT) and the Federal
Motor Carrier Safety Administration (FMCSA) drug/alcohol testing
regulations (49 CFR Parts 382 and 40). It further establishes guidelines to
maintain a drug-free and alcohol-free workplace, and to reduce the
probability of accidents or incidents related to tHe tise and/or abuse of
alcohol and other drugs by employees. -\{"
A G

This Ppolicy outlines four principles as a means tb@bh_ieve the Agency's
goal of providing a workplace free fro {g§*eﬁects of drig and alcohol use
and/or abuse for its employees. Thefirst principle emphasizes deterrence
from the use of drugs and alcopéijﬁ or affecting the werkplace. The
Agency will make education an‘d*_’{lsfqining vailable for all.employees
regarding the effects of substancﬁé-k‘éag_sé on individuals and on the
workplace. Supervisors anqhﬁmanageréﬂyiﬂﬁeceive specialized training in
detection, early interver‘i{i&ﬁ{:a d enforbqfnent. Employees who test
positive for any reason will receivé:an evalhqfﬁen by a Substance Abuse

QT

Professional (SAP) before rétﬁ:\mng‘tgﬁ%pk ®
r""__H‘“- \‘ \\ & f,——a\‘l“ .

The seconc}f‘éﬁﬁeiﬁlg\.\is treéthé ;

maintains .dn Employee ‘-—.Couns\éj _

with pe@_i_ problems ' surrounc

and rehabilitation. The Agency
Service (ECS) to assist employees
19 the misuse of drugs and alcohol.

Your superviser will dirett-you \ﬁ{:}the proper agency. The Agency
sug@eﬁg__[gha silkation | befdreua;gié}nployee’s job is in jeopardy. Although

employees are en _‘__.q[aged to receive help for drug and alcohol problems,
/ p'afrticipatiom;gt-..l\_EC qmli not excuse an employee’s failure to comply with
“_ Agency rules“ahd regilation nor will it preclude discipline for rule of

“Ppalicy violatior‘ﬁ. \ v
The fif?é__\_prin e is detection. Toward this end, the Agency employs a

- £ o drug and/or 40% alcohol tests in the following
circumstar pre-employment, reasonable suspicion, post
accident/incident, return to work, random and follow-up. The above drug
and/or alcohol tests will apply to those employees who are required to
possess a commercial driver's license by their job classification_or are
otherwise covered by the federal regulations noted above.

The fourth principle is enforcement, which is essential if deterrence,
rehabilitation and detection are to be successful. All employees must be
“fit for duty” as defined within this Ppolicy. Accordingly, the failure to
properly report the use of medically authorized drugs, the use, sale



or possession of illegal drugs, any use of intoxicants resulting in
unfitness for duty, as well as the use or possession of intoxicants on
Agency property, while using Agency equipment or while on Agency
business, is prohibited and will result in disciplinary action up to and-
including discharge. To assure that safety is maximized, any employee
who tests positive for drugs and/or alcohol after an accident/incident or in
“reasonable suspicion” situation maywill be discharged from the Agency.

INTRODUCTION

The goal of the Agency, its management, and its ,ernp!"oyees is to establish
a drug and alcohol-free work environment and t6 remain free from the
effects of drugs and alcohol in order to guatantee e health and safety of
employees and the public. Attachment “A’*@rovrdesjhfomatlon about the
effects of alcohol misuse and the s;ghg and sympto ms of an alcohol
problem; and Attachment “B” lists thé job classifi catlons S|dered to be

safety-sensitive. This Ppolicy lncérpo’rates the DOT dru hol testing
requirements for those safety-sensﬂn)e employégs of the Agenay.
\ \\ i ;""
A. Applicability - "\,\ ,

This Ppolicy applles\To ~all {egulz\\i'\ part—tlme temporary, and
contractual employees, as well ‘as_contragtors when they are on
Agency ¢1o ei:ty or When bep‘drﬁ‘rlrgﬁ -Agency business who are

eat gt'the DOT ?ederal regulatlonsrequrred—te

e&%& VISItOFS,.. endors\ghd contractors are governed by this
Ppol egQ\N\hllefén t_-e“Agency ;Jremlses and will not be permitted to

-—ﬂndu r)ess or ‘rem,@lﬁfon Agency property if found to be in
*"'\ﬁﬂlen o‘fﬂi:s Ppolrcy

g

f’

A
Q\B Employ{é\an&ﬂi\nagement Responsibilities

All employaés are required to refrain from using drugs and alcohol
\és\descrﬁeg in the fitness for duty section of this Ppolicy (lll.A.1.).

Ag\el;teg, ’employees who manage private contracts for work
conducted on Agency property are responsible for ensuring
contractor compliance with this Ppolicy.

Employees at all levels of the organization are responsible for
ensuring adherence to this Ppolicy. Supervisors will be held strictly
accountable for both the application of the Ppolicy and the
consistency of its enforcement. The General Manager [(760) 364-
2315]) is the individual acting as the implementation coordinator
and is available to answer questions relevant to the Ppolicy and



associated procedures. The-Agency-prohibits-discrimination-on-the

| oriontation.vet tat isability.
C. Confidentiality

Confidentiality is maintained throughout the drug/alcohol screening
process and all test results will be forwarded to the Medical Review
Officer for review. Individual test results may not be released to
any other party, or parties, absent a specific ltten authorization by
the tested person to release the results to off grs except as follows:
4 4
e The employee authorized the tiansmrftal of the information.
[ / ‘x
o
e The employee has sngned g%reatment p!an with a SAP or a
back to work or work resumptlon agreement with the Agency
in which the resuIts,gST the screep‘must be knawn for further
action concerning theqmploye/g i A
e The employege.has been ant for testing under any of the six
(6) cwcumsfangeg‘*dlscussed\ »Section IV, and the Medical
Review Officer. (6‘f‘u§€islgnee) nqus:( inform the appropriate
De3|gnated E p1oyer epﬁsentaﬁge(DER)
.
. f‘{he emplb ee m %(gls a claim against the Agency which
'

A involves ﬂa& drug andfor alcohol screen and/or its resuilt.
' \\__ '

gipli a!y action against the employee that
1g-andfor alcohol screen and/or result.

4 i v SAP ﬁ wnif \ake every effort to carry out all actions relative to
f _ this Pp@lfe $ manner which respects the dignity and
. confi denti lfty ose involved. SAP records are regarded as
. \s;onf identigl medical records and are not available to anyone

QEHSIde of SAP staff without a signed release of information.

\\ '\
Only\t se Agency personnel who must be involved in a case will
be given information regarding an employee’s positive test result or
information regarding the employee’s participation or lack thereof in
an SAP treatment program. Every attempt will be made to advise
the employee in advance.

In cases where an employee has chosen to make his/her
participation at SAP an issue in any claim against the Agency, the
employee understands that he/she waives his/her right to
confidentiality. In such cases, the Agency assumes the right to



thoroughly explore and evaluate the employee's participation in
SAP.

lll. IMPLEMENTATION GUIDELINES FOR PROMOTING A DRUG AND
ALCOHOL FREE WORKPLACE

A. Deterrence
a. Fitness for Duty

The Agency has determined that an émpioyee is fit for duty
when he/she is unequivocally able to’ﬁerform his/her job duties,
including when he/she is ready fpr/ mﬂ{\ ar working without the
presence of any alcohol or the presenceof: -any specified drugs
or their metabolites as presar@ed by this. Drug and Alcohol
Policy. As required bsf/ poT regulatlon‘n safety-sensntlve
employees are prohibite: fmm consuming alcohol, feur (4) hours

prior to performing a sa ag(-sensm/e inction. b >

An employee i |S@ duty” or subjeét to duty” within the meaning
of this prowsmn\m\ b

F*“m the tlm ‘E_-'elshe arrives on the property until the
" time 11 /she coinpletes his/her work assignments and

w\ leav /@é@ e proper(y

P . a\WQEn repoftlng aIﬁzi“?the Agency designated site for medical
y 4B \eialqatlon

hen t\he employee has volunteered or has been
h N ‘?s&gned@xtra work on his/her day off, vacation, etc.

\ fule on an “on-call” status or prior to the start of duty,
< when told in advance that he or she is expected to be on
h 4 duty at some point in the future.

e When involved with Agency business while not on
Agency property.

e Alcohol consumption is prohibited four (4) hours prior to
reporting for work.



i mmma a e amiie o el el o s o i B A et e o mad oo Bk i ae Bais o el i Boams e hin e e e i B M ik e s adlli e v 't il

Reporting the Use of Prescription or “Over-the-Counter”
Medication is required._(However, the employee is not required
to disclose the condition for which he is taking the medication.)

The Agency, under its own authority, requires that safety-
sensitive employees report their use of prescription or “over-the-
counter” medication which contains alcohol or other substances
that may impact their ability to perform safety-sensitive work to
their supervisor. DER will consult with a physician or nurse who
will make the determination as to whether, there is a possibility
that the employee’'s performance <may be affected or
compromised by the use of such medication or that the safety of
the employee, his/her coworkers of yblic is, or could be, in
jeopardy. If it is concluded thath 5
employee will be consndere
supervisor—or—dispa

he/she

circumstances, the fai
action.
The employee _, i rarily disqualified until cleared

to return to work ician.® fety-sensntlve employees

n drugs and “over-the-
h this section, are subject
and including discharge.
ees are required to inform their
A of their employment
Jditness for duty prior to obtaining

W mem e o e e e e TR T W e - R T T T AT e e Y WS g ey A rw—



B. Employee Counseling Service (ECS) Responsibilities

Any employee that has a confirmed positive drug or alcohol test or
refuses to take a drug/alcohol test must be removed from safety
sensitive duties immediately. The individual must be evaluated by
a SAP and informed of available educational and rehabilitation
programs that can assist them to resolve problems with substance
abuse. The SAP evaluation and/or information on rehabilitation
does not imply that any disciplinary outcome will necessarily be
altered by providing such services. o

/ '_\

ECS will assist employees with alcohel/ and drug problems, and

related concerns, through: / o N
‘x.
F.N \»/ -_"1.__‘ ! %
e Performing a SAP ev;alﬂgfson ) Y
y _
e Consultation with 5uperV|s /rs and/or \ather Agency
officials. \\ \ / I w

- d

. Evaluatlgrragd referral
) Short-te% \hdﬁ?ld!,!ﬁh'émd grochounsehng
/?(ng:mdual cas ; maégemeat >

.
/
4 6’ Crisis in}erventl

\ (twenty—four (24) hour crisis line).

Spéejahze;ﬁmmng,mr supervisory staff and individuals.

'-J

E!‘Qployee educational programs.

. "\ ‘-.\ ‘l\ "

. : \x

“‘L Substanc% Abuse Professional (SAP) Evaluation
A Y

Th‘e ROT iquires that covered employees receive evaluation by a
Sub§t' e A use Professional upon a positive test for drugs or alcohol
regardless” of their disciplinary status. This evaluation will be
conducted according to the standards outlined in Section VI of this

Ppolicy.
2. Referral to ECS

There are two ways to begin rehabilitation through ECS:

¢ Voluntary self-referral



e Managerial referral

Voluntary self-referral is preferred by the Agency as a means to
resolve drug and/or alcohol problems. Any employee who self
identifies prior to any incident or discipline can obtain confidential
assistance for his/her problem. An employee is considered a voluntary
self-referral if he/she has not incurred formal discipline at-the—Final
Warning—Step—(within a two (2) year period) related to drugs or
alcoholef-the-Agency's-diseiplinary-procedure. Voluntary participation
at ECS will not adversely impact an indivi uals employment or
promotional opportunities at the Agency. Howéver, employees who do
not make a conscientious attempt to oyémtime their drug and/or
alcohol problems may experience perfogﬁnanqe\problems as a result
and, in that case, will be subject to dlscra]mary actnan based on poor or
improper job performance or a 15 gsult of a bqsmve drug and/or
alcohol screen, and will no lopgﬁ er‘be considered" q\\!oluntary self-

referral. 3 |
> *x/

An employee can be referred to*‘ “;—_S*//outSIde officials (probation
officers, court programs),and still be‘t;g0§|dered a self-referral if he/she
has not been formally reaghed-the iRg-Step of the Agenc
disciplined for drugs or'alec '
two (2) years. aFy 125

The secon/ ave‘n'-e or re?egiéhs throu\ﬁ management. Supervisors
Ifaged to refer to ECS for an evaluation any
emplo‘/yee who d _n}bnstrates }ob performance problems such as
excessive ahse/u : ‘tﬁfﬁtﬁess apg overall poor work performance.

i ~ b
A Thﬁﬁa\@rgng p rvisor will be informed of the individual's desire to
/ participate, Ver, employees are not required to participate in a

G treatment . _‘_ram Q\s&abhshed by ECS exceptun_ti-the-Final-\Warning
Qs : z s outlined below.

----- - -

the thIaﬁvlng circumstances an employee will be required to

@lﬁe“' through ECS:

a. Referral to ECS as part of a Last Chance Aqreementat

Procedure-

Employees in this category will be ordered to ECS by a
supervisor or manager as part of the discipline. In most
situations the employee will not continue to work in his/her
position while participating in a treatment plan established by
ECS, due to the safety sensitive nature of their job.



Employees who refuse to participate when referred under
this circumstance will be subject to disciplinary action which
would be discharge.  Supervisors will be notified if
employees in this category fail to participate.

Any safety-sensitive employee who is evaluated by ECS and
is determined to be unfit for duty due to a substance abuse
problem and who then opts not to participate in a treatment
program will be advised by ECS that belshe cannot return to
his/her position until cleared by SAP. Qfearance by SAP will
involve a drug/alcohol screen. ljran -employee fails to begin
participation at ECS within sey,eﬁ &8 Worklng days or refuses
the drug/alcohol clearance Q/scneen hel.she will be referred to
the appropriate supervisar for dlsmpllng whlch will be a
recommendation for di /sctﬁrge \

b. Referral after a p%@}we druglék;ahol screen. "

Employees wﬂl be referréd-- QECS by their Supervisor after a
positive dr .Galeohol screen, », In these situations, such
employees ust‘bg Byvaluated, By SAP, within seven (7)
working days, 1 dete """" bwheﬂ‘wef jhe employee is in need
offaﬁtatance n \re ying- p?a lems associated with the
(o]} ol use. In addition, employees must

: reatment program established by SAP
xdurlng the entlre tinr e\gf their suspension. In some cases
< emplo es“'ﬁfay -be held out of work up to an additional six

TR maheﬁs if thewragﬁ}re additional treatment. (See section

.\ A-ﬂ of this Ppolicy).
] x N
\Employeeg 'who test positive on reasonable suspicion, post-
e nt/m'bldent— oOr return to work testmg will be provided

ﬁls?sharged from the Agency. Participation at ECS in this
\ ga‘fegory does not in any way guarantee that they will be
relnstated ;

c. Referral after an off duty driving under the influence
offense.

Under its own authority, the Agency will require employees
whose positions require a valid commercial driver’s license,



who lose their license for driving a non-Agency vehicle off
duty while under the influence, at the time the license is
suspended to contact ECS for evaluation and treatment
planning. Such employee will not be returned to operating
work until their license is restored and until they are cleared
for duty by ECS regardless of whether any court ordered
treatment has been completed.

Based on the reason for referral and the assessment of
ECS, employees referred to ECS andfdetermlned to have a
substance abuse problem may & removed from their
position and suspended or ass gne’d to alternative duty,
subject to the avallablllty of syd{ work the—eentraetual
o ions-upon-the-a ah- 2 BY any-and the
need to accommodate o}her dlsquallf ed erﬁployees

r*

IV. GENERAL POLICY PROVISIQNS "FOR QLCOHOL\\AND DRUG

’ recelve a lgb scréeg before assignment.

1\1‘

TESTING . y D
L .‘\. ___Ix.‘;/ /___/
A. Detection - ‘xh\_
\\ ‘\-:;:\ \H‘\‘-“\"‘-« -‘\‘\‘\_"&\_"-‘
1. Drug and Alcohol Screenmb W <@
\"x \ . “

The Agency, /nforder to pro at nﬁf ma;\ntaq;i a drug and alcohol free
environment, i} utilizé a progratf of drug and/or alcohol screening which
will be manéglow undjr the folléwlhg conditions.

N a

a) Pre-e!@byménf ,,,, o
e ' HL_ ““?\'

/ The'l-‘ requl(éﬁ that candidates for safety-sensitive positions as well
" as any efriployee who is transferring into a safety-sensitive position

ngr to the thﬁ the employee must sign a release authorizing the
pm&adure %éndldates for employment will be notified of this
reqﬁir@rqen( during the pre-placement process and the test will be
glven‘bq parf of the pre-employment process.

Agency employees who are permanently transferring into a safety-
sensitive position will be given a drug test. A urine test will screen for
the presence of marijuana, cocaine, opiates, phencyclidine (PCP),
amphetamines and/or any additional substances required by DOT in
the future.



b) Random

Only those employees who perform or whose job includes the
performance of safety-sensitive functions as defined by the DOT
regulations will be subject to drug screening on an unannounced and
random basis. Each employee in the random pool has an equal
chance of being selected for testing and shall remain in the pool even
after being selected for testing and shall remain in the pool even after
being tested. Random testing will be administered at random times
during the week, day or shift to avoid predictability. A urine test will be
used to screen for the presence of marijyapa, cocaine, opiates,
phencyclidine (PCP), amphetamines and/or any other drugs required
by DOT in the future. An Evidential Breéily’f‘&tmg Device (EBT) will
be used to screen for the presence of algohol. Rah dom selection shall
be done by an outside contracting iéémzatlon wﬁh no intervention or
involvement with the Agency in '¢1 }anom testing seiea’ﬁon process.

(See attachment B for a llstlng of safegr-tsgnsmve jOb cla;;sﬁ" ications
designated for random testlng) \\_ ,/ ff
<

U

c) Reasonable Susplman - \\\
.,‘H h

An employee who reports\fo wai'k- in amunﬁmndltlon or is found to be
unfit while or fduty\and/or wHo ex _lbﬂshe ior which provides one (1)
supervisorwith nable\uépimon that the employee is unfit for duty
will be réquired to submlt to a a/rug and alcohol screen. The employee
will begwen auri at,est for me ri]uana cocaine, opiates, phencyclidine
(PCP), érq heta neﬁ" andlor a" »other drugs required by DOT in the
fﬁ%ure
/

V' 4 Exam\l at re%sonable suspicion include, but are not limited to, the
“\\ followmg O Y

“--,f

;‘—s..

_ &

\ A bt
\( Physical s}gns and symptoms consistent with prohibited substance
ﬂse or ‘fs se of alcohol, e.g. odor of alcohol, slurred speech or
wa \ftof rdlnatlon staggering, erratic behavior, dilated pupils, fast

speegh,aggressnveness and any other indications.

e Occurrence of a serious or potentially serious industrial accident
that_appears to may-have been caused by the employee’s use of
alcohol or drugs.

o Fights (defined as physical contact), assaults, and flagrant
disregard, or violations of, established safety, security or other
operating procedures.



1, “\

A

N

_means beingte

d) Post accident/incident.

The DOT requires that a post-accident test be conducted in the
following circumstances involving safety-sensitive employees and
Agency vehicles.

¢ [n any instance where there is loss of a human life.

e Anytime an employee must be transported to a medical treatment
facility, and the employee is cited under state or local law for a
moving violation arising from the accident. 4

y

e The vehicle incurs disabling damage’fbﬂi‘ \_QI{ires towing from the
scene, and the employee is cite ,ﬁ;in’der S 'tg;.._gr local law for a
moving traffic violation arising f}'ﬁ ; ;_ﬂ"te accident.<_ b

e) Return to Duty. y f {’/ \’\;\,\

.\1‘ J‘_\_ \\\/..

The drug and alcohol screen “‘wj!}bé __j’d’entical to that utilized in
IV.A1.c., Reasonable(_ﬁﬂspicion ) 4
sl e Ul

\ N N B
f) Follow-up :\« i, \\
gt

by __ rereligible for a return to duty

agreeme _;§ﬁé'lrb§.’zi\ubject‘ ) unannounced follow-up periodic testing

for at léast 12 bu}% not more than 60 months. The frequency and

duration uf the fol a;r-

As required 67 DQT, emp{dng{ who aré

up test \“__will be recommended by the SAP.

There wm;;ﬁjq\a  miinimum of.six (6)'tests required during the first twelve

A12):months. Follow-up testing’is separate from and in addition to the
Pl il nhiasny ; . .

4 regular rgpdéig\“-tgstmg program. Employees subject to follow-up
(f . testing mm\‘alsagemain in the standard random pool and must be
tested whengyer thﬁ!ﬁgames come up for random testing, even if this
ted twice in the same day, week or month.

The drug and alcohol screen will be identical to that utilized in
IV.A.1.b., Random.

B. Confirmation of a Positive Screen



The Agency Medical Review Officer will review the results of the drug test
from the laboratory, verify the laboratory report and determine if the
applicant/employee received a positive or negative result from the drug
test.

If the applicant/employee receives a positive test result, that individual will
be called by the Medical Review Officer who will review the individual's
medical history, including any medical records and biomedical information
provided. During the interview, the individual will be afforded the
opportunity to discuss the test results and to offer any additional or
clarifying information which may explain the posmvh fesult.

If there is some new information which may/éf{fectﬁe finding, the Medical
Review Officer may request the Iaboratory to perform ‘additional testing on
the original specimen in order to furthg-clgnfy the restigé» Following these
steps, a final determination will be made that the test is' .either positive or
negative and the employee will be;.féa advised. G
/»' \’ \‘ \._

The Medical Review Officer WIIF ﬁat /G nvey test results to the
applicant's/employee’s des nated represen ative or any Agency official
until the Medical Review Qf @ar has maﬂe“a final decision that the test
was positive or negatwe A | jppxcant/é b{oyee fails to contact the
Medical Review Officer wﬂhh; 72 h“‘Ufs, the teﬁgtwjﬂ be considered positive

and approprlateaﬂhan WI|| be\‘(\ak ‘/n

1 Reqﬂasf/f;r Retest \ f
Y 4 ; :

If an employee ,has Takaﬁa uﬁﬁb test for drugs and the results are
positmg tr\\e-e_ E)ﬁyee maquhest a retest of the original split sample.

J

P As ot eﬂ by» DOT the retest will be conducted at the Gas
,,\ '\.__ Chromatogl;gphy/Maé\.} Spectrometry level only.

initiate retest the employee must contact the Agency's
he@nated edical Review Officer within three (3) days of the date
upoh. wblch ibe/ employee was notified that the initial test was positive.
If, after iﬁefmeetlng, the employee wishes to proceed with the retest
procedurés the employee must send a written request, a certified
check or money order for the cost of the retest, along with a competed
form detailing the name and address of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) certified lab where the employee wishes the
specimen to be retested to the Agency designated Medical Review
Officer. The written request, certified check or money order, and the
form must be postmarked within five (5) calendar days from the date
the employee met with the Agency designated Medical Official.



Upon receipt of the results from a DHHS certified laboratory, the
employee will be contacted by the DER of the results.

DsSuring the time required for the retest, the employee will continue in
the same status he/she had prior to the request. In the event that the
second test returns a negative result, the employee will be
compensated for any time or benefits lost and the cost of the retest.

2. Sample Deterioration

As some samples may deteriorate during stor% e detected levels of
the drug in the retest may record below thgdetectlon limits of the first
test. ) / i 4 N
As long as the results of the seco/r,xé st are equ‘aL\tQ\or greater than
the established sensitivity of the gonfirmatory test, thewgecond test shall
be confirmed and reports as pasitive results \;\

ik :

3. Observed Drug Tests . ;
o (’
There are certain sntl.fahgr!mn which an erloyee or applicant will be

required to submit to ar Q\b‘sa@ed\unne sreen_as set forth in federal
regulations.: b




V. ENFORCEMENT OF POLICY THROUGH DISCIPLINE
A. Pre-Employment y
Any applicant who tests positive on a pfe-%acement drug/alcohol
screen will not be hired by the Agency.<If r a twenty-four month
period, the individual wishes to re-ap/pb? to th Ency he/she may do
so only if he/she can provide Pl _af}that he/shq ‘has received an
evaluation by a SAP i and recelveel ihe appropriate
assistance. \ \

AP 2

B. Random Testing

Any employee whc fesfs positive for \éndgs and/or alcohol pursuant
to a random screé‘n ﬁﬁa!ifbe dlscha if any of the following
conditions apply: R\E / D

1. Seconﬁ/ po“ttiqe test , i
\‘ o

If a gmployeef s tested éqsmve for drugs and/or alcohol on a
drug \éa\r.lci/or %l ~test copducted for any reason within the

i ﬁreced‘hg '__pﬁty-fo 4 “ﬁpws the employee shall be discharged
*fer secepﬂ posntlve screen.

,f! f 4

"\\
\2 Poor dismglmaty record
»Any empléyge who tests positive for drugs and/or alcohol pursuant

k. f@ a random screen and who has had prior major disciple under is
the Agency’s discipline procedure

sh l\%g jischarged.

Employees who test positive for drugs and/orf alcohol pursuant to a
random screen, and who do not fall under either of the conditions
listed above, shall be subject to disciplinary action as follows:

e When an employee tests positive for drugs and/or alcohol
pursuant to a random drug and/or alcohol screen, the

employee will receive a minimum of fifteen (15)thirty(30)
working days suspended without pay. The employee will be



required to report to ECS for a SAP evaluation and follow a
recommended treatment plan.

e The employee must contact ECS, participate in a SAP
evaluation and sign a treatment plan within seven (7)
working days from the date of his/her suspension. Failure to
contact ECS and sign a treatment plan within seven (7)
working days will result in discharge.

If, after the SAP evaluation and signing a treatment plan, an
employee fails to fully partmpaé }:r the recommended
treatment plan, he/she will be pro tde’d written notification of
failure to participate. If non- p?rtft:lpayan continues, a second
written notification will be sent to the* ‘employee and his/her
supervisor, which will res IH discharge. % N

o While participating tECfS the el ployee w\ﬂ\be required to
submit to a mlnlmum of two 2) announced ‘drug and/or
alcohol screens durmg\‘thﬁ time ,suspended If an employee
tests posm(vexon any Bné creen during the time out

suspended, \Q WJ' be dls@arged

e Once an emp}@ee s‘é‘rved atJbast ten (10)twenty-five
285 Working da§'§:of slhé‘i‘s épansnon ECS shall evaluate

/fhe em‘pﬁ e sre uess to return to work.

! lf the e pfoyee hah Ily participated in his/her treatment
43 _Aa ﬁﬁeﬁmtg 'ork Agreement will be executed with
gency Supem![sor who will place him/her at the final
\steep a progressive discipline and will require a return-to-
@ark and alcohol screen.

t\‘ esults of the screen are negative, the employee will be
ble to return to work. The Return to Work Agreement
w;lfr quire that the employee continue to participate in a
tre/af/ment program outlined by ECS for an additional
/m‘lnlmum two (2) year period.

The voluntary selection of work or working of overtime which
interferes with the employee’s ability to comply with the
treatment plan may result in an ECS determination that the
employee is not in compliance with the required treatment
plan and, therefore, in violation of the Return to Work
Agreement. DOT regulations require that the SAP
recommend both the number of required follow-up tests per
year and the length of the follow-up testing contract. This



can be up to 60 months with a minimum of six (6) tests in the
first twelve (12) months.

o |f at the end of his/her-thirty-{30)-werking-day-suspension the
employee is not fit for duty either by self-report or ECS

assessment, the employee may have his/her time-out-
suspended without pay extended for a period of time not to
exceed an additional six (6) months and will be required to
continue in a treatment program monitored by ECS. At the
end of this period, failure to qualify to ;etum to duty will result
in discharge.

,‘.f /
Al "
r

e Employees are required td . »for any treatment
recommended by the SAF}kfhaf IS qt covered by his/her
health insurance plan. > . Y

C. Reasonable Suspicion <—" ’ h

F -\,_> "~\1\::}

Any employee who tests posmve f@r Eirués and/or alcohol pursuant to a
reasonable suspicion serggn will b&tﬂs harged. As required by DOT,
the reasonable suspig l@\ egrmmat eQ (1\1ay be made by one (1)

appropriately trained A enc SL{PEWISOF

A . \;'}
D. Post Acclﬂéntﬂnmdent // %

and/orx-alcohol yﬂl be discharged, regardless of the ultimate
prevent\‘b lity determiniation. or
_injury.. See Séction IV.

/
anﬁfer@ioha‘l «Ktlng

E Return'to’ Duti ©

="'jByee m&ﬁvgd in a%;acmdent who tests positive for drugs

e extent of any damage of personal
T1RG; ghd d. for accidents which require drug

\N}y employee who is covered by this provision and who tests positive
\\Ep! gs apdfgfr alcohol pursuant to a return to duty screen will be
disc aegf. ;

‘ Employ;és who test positive pursuant to a signed Last Chance

Agreement in-the-following-circumstances-will be discharged:




F. Follow-up y
\'L\“’_.,H' \\\ “
Any employee who tests positive eg);émgs and/or‘ai@hol pursuant to a
follow-up screen will be discharged. ~ U

"y h,
> U,
/ b
4 . A N
h - !.r" \‘“ - N

G. During Trial Period G Al
N

Any employee during.the ninety-aay\ (80) Training Period who test
positive for drugs and/or aleohol during his/her training period will be
discharged. This \{ﬁaﬁda&i“x@mpo ¥, employees who are
recommended for regulak Status.> ..

“ /ﬁ“““ \ t y 4
H. Refusal o Take:Test '« “*v’

b

either b‘iﬁmg\d or’iét;_:ii_lﬁﬁ;will be'discharged. As required by DOT, this

_wilh-be reported as a ﬁr"éfusaitfg;" est. This will include any employee

/ ’Qth-—Jg__il_ to “provide a urine sample within three (3) hours or an
y 4 S @mou it of breath for an alcohol test.

S 9
"\_‘““-l;!owever, e [z'i'lpyee\s}v@ho have difficulty providing a sample will be
“given up to 40 oz. of liquids and an ample opportunity to produce a

sample. Thjé:_"‘ e period should not exceed three (3) hours from the
tim‘é'-\jﬁ;gv‘ yﬁi the employee attempted to provide a specimen.
Empldyqasﬁilho notify their supervisor that they are ill when they have
been informed that they are required to take a drug and/or alcohol test
will be given prompt medical attention, which must also include a drug

and/or alcohol test.

4 A
Any emﬁ[qyee whc_:J refuses tc\iﬁ‘%t;mit to any drug and/or alcohol test,

. Test Tampering and/or Non-Compliance with Testing
Procedure

In situations where it has been determined that an employee has
tampered with his/her urine sample or an employee fails, after



VI.

reasonable opportunity, to complete any step in the drug testing
process, he/she will be discharged.

J. Unsatisfactory Mandated Employee Counseling Service (ECS)
Participation

An employee ordered to ECS under any provision of this Ppolicy
who fails to participate in the SAP evaluation or fully participate in
the recommended treatment program, fails to comply with the terms
of his/her ECS plan, or refuses to take a drug:and/or alcohol screen
when ordered to do so shall be discharged: (See Section Iil.B. for
additional information regarding ECS treafmént program.)

METHODOLOGY ¢ N

rf\ e
y

The Agency will have the respons:b"llity to coordlnate ‘qﬂ festing efforts
including contracts with any off-sgte pollectlon facmty and W!Il ensure that
all testing is performed in accorda%éta with Départment of Tfﬂﬁ*sportatlon
(DOT) rules on drug and alcohol te ﬁg as well as requirements set by
Department of Health and:Human Semcas (DHHS) regarding collections,
chain of custody, and Iabq[a@i‘y procedureg\

A. Drug Testlng Procedu s ¥ ;'L"-x “‘x
: // f ‘LL\
/nE wﬂt@ntract \{QP Jaboratoﬁ]wserwces with a laboratory
i ggthe D =_!‘;IS se laboratories have been rigorously

sd and meet the highest standards for analytical
“a, Tbe laMemw Eutlllze a two-tier testing methodology,
ifaﬁpemm&ma a’smvemihgjnltlal immunoassay test, a confirmatory
J/’ tewﬁ be caf _ucted The only confirmatory test permitted is the
“GC/MS = Eas Eihmmatography/Mass Spectrometry. As required by

, ~ DOT, the ne spe '_rrgen must be split and poured into two specimen

bottles this pt'owde the employee with the option of having an
lysis of th sfpllt sample performed at a separate DHHS laboratory,
a’t tﬁe employees expense, should the primary specimen test result be
ven’ﬁeé posit ve.
A 4
1. Drug Categories and Test Thresholds

Pursuant to the current Department of Transportation
regulations, the drugs to be tested for, and the threshold levels
of each test which the Agency is required to accept are:



- av——

i8 i ot o sk sl K3 a

el i il

Cutoff Concentrations for Drug Tests

TR PP WL T

(Benzoylecgonine)

Initial test analyte Initial test Confirmatory test Confirmatory test cutoff
cutoff® analyte concentration
Marijuana metabolites (THCAY 50 ng/ml’ i ,/"1 S ng/mL.
o,
Cocaine metabolite 150 ng/mlL’ 100 ng/m}

Codeine/
Morphine

Hydrocodone/
Hydromorphone

2000 ng/mlL..
2000 ng/mlL..

100 ng/mL..
100 ng/mL.

Oxycodone 100 ng/mL.

Oxymorphone 100 ng/mL.
6-Acetylmorphine 6-Acetylmorphine 10 ng/mL.
Phencyclidine 25 ng/mL Phencyclidine 25 ng/mL.

©

m——r=— e e

- e o ——



Amphetamine/ 500 ng/mL Amphetamine 250 ng/mL.
Methamphetamine Methamphetamine 250 ng/mL..
MDMAYMDA’® 500 ng/mL MDMA 250 ng/mL.
MDA 250 ng/mL.

7"1/\\*'-‘

/ i

(Any changes to the regulations rﬁmﬂm_gthe above thresholds

shall be incorporated into the !-”e}fcy ahd_“s_gperceed the _table

above.) /
D;ugov—Me(ab?}é 4 Uﬂne\

v ) b *
Gannabmmds—(Maja,tuana)\\-w I 50 ng 15ng
GCocaine {{’ =:“L-\"'\..\\“ \\\:‘-‘_\ 150 ng 150 ng
.e.i. os—{narcotice such -  ﬁ,\“%\i@OGng 2,000 ng

2E-1g
251y

2. Rol ﬂf th g_bstance Abuse Professional
2

. The DO Eé ulation requires that any individual who has a verified
Qosmve 5t result must be immediately removed from his/her
vﬁﬁsmonf’ In addition, he/she must be advised of the resources

aflable to evaluate and resolve problems associated with drug
abusaf including the names, addresses, telephone numbers of
substance abuse professionals. The employee must be evaluated
by a Substance Abuse Professional (SAP) who shall determine
what assistance the employee needs in resolving the problems

assomated W|th prohlblted drug use—Even—#—t-he—tesﬂng—sategery

A SAP can be (1) licensed physician (Medical Doctor or Doctor of
Osteopathy), or a licensed or certified psychologist, social worker,



or employee assistance professional, with knowledge of and
clinical experience in diagnosis and treatment of drug and alcohol
related disorders; of (2) additions counselor certified by the
National Association of Alcoholism Drug Abuse Counselors
Certification Commission, (3) Must have SAP certification, which
includes Federal DOT Rules and Regulations.

The role of the Substance Abuse Professional (SAP) is to:

e Evaluate whether a safety-sensitive, employee who has
refused to submit to a drug test opWho has a verified drug
test result is in need of assmtaﬁee in resolving problems

associated with prohibited drgg use i Y
e Evaluate whether a safefy,sensmve empkeyee who has a
positive drug test, ané is eligible to reﬂ:m o work, has
complied with the SAP’S recomm/endatlons "x‘_‘ h
o Recommend the numbeg ef/nmﬁ{hs of returnlng to safety-
sensitive epiployee will be subject to follow-up testing after

returning to, i ' "'_'{after a minimum six (6) tests required
during the fi rst iwewe\Qmor?thﬁ

B. Alcohol J&sting Procbﬁur - \/ L 4

,r

The DQT regulat\‘l geqwres b(\eath testing be collected through the
use of‘E. ential B 2ath Testm Device (EBT) that is approved by the
National “Highway ,]'Jiaﬁc“ﬁafety ’Administration (NHTSA). The test
(_,,.-mﬂstbe pe' '_r;neﬁ by aBrean}lcohol Technician (BAT).

r_r,.J"""The D \{eg"”f’hqg prohibits any employee with an alcohol
. concentratian’ 'of 0.040,0r greater from performing any safety-sensitive
duties until e/she “has been evaluated by a Substance Abuse

E?‘efessmnal ansrl has passed a return to duty test.

\‘ 4\“\

k‘i« Eyﬂ/ ;lt/al Breath Testing Device (EBT)

An EB/T is a breath testing device that is capable of measuring an
employee’s alcohol concentration. It must be able to distinguish
alcohol from acetone at the 0.02 alcohol concentration level. An
EBT must be capable of conducting an air blank and performing an
external calibration check. For confirmation tests, the DOT
requires the use of EBT's that can:

e Produce a printed result in triplicate or three consecutive
identical copies of each breath test.



e Print a unique and sequential number of each completed
test, with the BAT and the employee being able to read the
number before each test and print the number of each copy
of the result.

e Print, on each copy of the result, the manufacturer's name
for the device, the device's serial number, and the time of
the test.

2. Breath Alcohol Technician (BAT) ,-/f

y
The alcohol tests must be perf ﬁy,ed by a Breath Alcohol
Technician who is “trained to pr [ency'ﬁ The operatlon of the
EBT he/she is using and in the alcohol testing progedures specified
in the regulations. The BA@ “must successfully, complete an
NHTSA approved course {ﬁ the instruction that proWés tralnlng in
the principles of EBT methaéalogy, ope;atlon and thegcallbratlon
checks. In addition, the B T\mﬂst complete training on the
fundamentals of qbreath ana sis” for alcohol content, the
procedures requrreﬂ for. obtam"hg va breath specimen, and
interpreting and rec‘qu\g ELBTxresultS\ b

\ b,

’B”eslg\na;e ‘the Agency BATs. In
add| {he‘Aga cy ma! di ignate alternate BATs who will serve

AEI' sins bns where it is in the best interest of the Agency

to‘tgstthe I?fjﬁal as qu1 ]y as possible.

F“*ﬂ;ﬁ Alcbﬁpt

o -
// The fv%wmg prqgedures will be used to conduct the test:

The A gn*? Supervu él: wﬁ

pr——

reath P‘OGGSS 4

\ e Scre: nlng‘“Test — The BAT will inform the employee of the
N need ‘to conduct a screening test. The BAT must open an
\ in Mdually sealed, disposable mouth piece in view of the

O %p/loyee and attach it to the EBT.

“If the result of the screening test is an alcohol concentration
of less than 0.02, no further testing is required, and the
employee may then return to his/her safety-sensitive
position.

e Confirmation Test — If the result of the screening test is an
alcohol concentration of 0.02 or greater, a confirmation test
must be performed.



£

y
1

y

Vi

u’ff

_amyear antk & Eengtﬁ“of?the
up !&60 rnc\hs with a mlnlmum of six (6) tests in the first twelve

“k

The confirmation test must be conducted at least 15 minutes, but
not more than 20 minutes, after the completion of the initial test.
This delay prevents any accumulation of alcohol in the mouth from
leading to an artificially high reading. The BAT will inform the
employee of the need to conduct a confirmation test. The
employee will be instructed not to eat, drink, or put any object or
substance in his/her mouth. The BAT will also instruct the
employee not to belch to the extent possible while awaiting the
confirmation test. The BAT must inform the employee that the test
will be conducted at the end of the waiting period even if the
employee has disregarded the |nstruct|on3z/__,..f‘

The confirmation test is conducted usigg 18 same procedures as
the screening test. If the initial and éQﬁf‘ rmatq\ﬁf test results are not
identical, the confirmation test ;ult is dee to be the final
result. \
O
If an employee has a co ation pf ﬁ,OZO or greﬁt@f but less
than 0.04, he/she will not b ;tted o perform safety-sensitive
functions for one slartt wh|ch I ba’ho less than twenty-four (24)
hours. If an emp 0! 1‘"‘ »has a con ratlon of 0.040 or greater,
he/she will be removed fromduty. The DOT regulation prohibits any
employee with an alcmhol c ':c@nt{atlo Eiﬁ 0.040 or greater from
performingany safety~§e : uita& until he/she has been
evaluate 9/ Yﬂﬁubsta pe &buse Professional and has passed a
ret tﬁ duty te ) The e ﬁ oyee must be evaluated by a SAP and
en‘fqﬁmto a fo J@\y up prog DOT regulations require that the
SAP ‘fatom ng both-the hﬁltnber of required follow-up tests per
ngtt low-up testing contract. This can be

(12)T
) W

Refusal & ‘an emﬁioyee to complete and sign the alcohol testing
» form, to pfovide an adequate amount of breath, (except as noted
Eelow) or et’hervvlse to cooperate with the collection process must
& No Jeé ‘on the form and the test will be terminated. The
em yge s actions will be regarded as a refusal. The test will be
reported as a positive. The employee will be referred immediately
to his/her supervisor for disciplinary action which will result | a
recommendation for discharge.

If an employee attempts and fails to provide an adequate amount of
breath, the Bat must note this on the form and immediately inform
the DER.



The BAT shall direct the employee to obtain, from a licensed
physician who is acceptable to the Agency, an evaluation
concerning the employee’s medical ability to provide an adequate
amount of breath. The evaluation should be made as soon as
practical after the attempted breath test.

If an Agency physician determines that there was a valid medical
reason for the inadequate amount of breath, the employee’s failure
to provide an adequate amount of breath will not be considered a
refusal. If no valid medical reason is determlned by an Agency
physician, the inadequate amount of breath ;:nhst be considered a
refusal to take the test and it will be repoﬁ%d as a positive.

4. Role of the Substance Abuse Prétassnonal N

The employee must be aégessed by a S bstance Abuse
Professional (SAP) who mﬂsj determine what ass nce if any,
the employee needs in resbly’tng probiéﬁ}s associated" agytth alcohol
misuse. In addition, he/she™q u\/t/ég advised of the resources
available to evaluate and resolvemblems associated with alcohol
misuse, including @am:as addressaé;xand telephone numbers of
appropriate counseli g and Ereatmen?“aregrams

The roIe Qfme Substance, Abuaef F‘rqfsssjonal is to:
,a Evaluate v)hether ch safety-sensitive employee who has
< an alco lftest res f 0.040 or greater or has refused to
« Submit’ g@,_aﬁ“alqph i test is in need of assistance in
. Fas“a[virfg problems @ssociated with alcohol misuse.
o ., Eval %e whether each safety-sensitive employee who
g prewot{s‘ly tested positive, and is eligible to return to work,
propéﬂ/y followed the SAP’'s recommendations for
ent. *
b, e Dee ine the number of months a returning safety-
"\"‘---\ sehs tive employee will be subject to follow-up alcohol
»_Aesting after returning to duty (after a minimum of six (6)
iésts required during the first twelve (12) months).
“The DOT and Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration
(FMCSA) requires follow-up testing for up to five (5)
additional years as determined by the Substance Abuse
Professional.
e A Substance Abuse Professional evaluation is required
whether or not termination is a consequence of a confirmed
positive test.




VIL.

The Agency reserves the right to amend the Ppolicy as appropriate,
including the list of designated safety-sensitive positions.

DEFINITION OF TERMS

Alcohol - Alcohol means the intoxicating agent in beverage alcohol, ethyl
alcohol, or other low molecular weight alcohols including methyl and
isopropyl. Alcohol use means the drinking or swallowing of any beverage,
liquid mixture or preparation (lncludmg any medlcatlon) containing
alcohol. A-liguid-depressant-which-slows-down physical-responses-and

] F. v
F ’
or-ihobsorsbroaths Al

aldalalds - - - - aWalala
- wrw e m RwIm' T oy —jam awERTivLe

Alcohol Misuse — Occurs when an empios‘iéé"'an%ékgt the work site with
alcohol in his/her system or the o 61'/ of alcohol“@h, his/her breath;
consumes a beverage containing gi¢ohol while on duf? SUQ; ect to duty,
within four (4) hours of reporting g r duty, or during a co nd/or lunch
break(s); or is late to work or abs ﬁt\“from work/gue to the congamptlon of
alcohol. i Al
il

Amphetamines — Centrz I ngiveys syste‘m\\stlmulants that speed up the
mind and body and mos bﬂbﬂ} ear m@ﬂpsule form. Also called
“speed” or “crystal’. They mQy be t‘ayen orally, #chted or inhaled through
the nose. / i, \.\ y 4 *x._ﬂ_ﬁ .

-
— .

Assay — Jm;lai test req ired by fhe regulations to be run on the urine
specimert., ‘[his test is/ ased e ability of antibodies to recognize
drugs in biolot lcal Eds,_“lf any prg ibited drug registers positive on this

fi rst«{ast, the cai{ tory testiai_ggn run.

o Gannablnoi S\ (Marijuana) — A hallucinogen made from a plant

—

substance called, Cant abis Sativa. It contains an active ingredient, the

ﬁ‘e{mcal Tetrahye _oc:g'ué}blnol (THC), ingested in various ways, primarily
thraugh smoking er eatingthe-leaf. It acts almost exclusively on the brain,
alteringthe pro erg interpretation of incoming messages, perception and
senseg\ y

Cocaine — ?k"a/rug derived from the coca bush which is usually converted
to a powder for use, often by inhaling through the nose or injecting in the
veins. It is a powerful physical and mental stimulant. “Rock” or “Crack” is
a variant.

Controlled Substances — Any drugs that are classified by the Drug
Enforcement Administration (DEA) into the five schedules or classes on
the basis of their potential for abuse, accepted medical use, and accepted
safety for use under medical supervision. A drug in any of these



schedules identifies that it is controlled and determines the nature of
supervisory control that must be exercised. Medications containing any
controlled substance must be prescribed by a physician who has a valid
DEA number.

DHHS - Department of Health and Human Services.

Disabling Damage — Damage that precludes departure of the vehicle
form the scene of the accident in its usual manner in daylight after simple
repairs. It includes damage to vehicles that could have been operated but
would have been further damaged if so operated. <

DOT — Department of Transportation y \\
Drug — Any substance which affects % an’ employeé‘s ability to perform
his/her job or poses a threat to thé Safety of others: \Thls definition
includes “over-the-counter” dmds “and/or drugs whiel», require a
prescription or other written approvai from ehp%ed practitioner/physician
or dentist for their use. U A

b 4
Drug Abuse — Use of aﬁy;ﬂfégal drug or gontrolled substance without a
valid prescription, mlsuse\g Teg W@rescr'b@é drugs, or use of illegally
obtained prescription drug _This-intludes u§§ of prescription drugs
legally prescrlbﬁd to-another i dwu alﬁthe Ki\}(an one’s self.

Employeer A(persbn‘who |s\ai;={wred to possess a commercial driver's
license zalled on ta operate a commercial vehicle for the
Agency or' oft_liazardous \materials (as set forth in federal
! apart of |§!hezjabﬁrespon31blhty These individuals may
/Bﬁ emp yees, $u l or part-tlme contractors or subcontractors. This

Ipéludes =1§“~not it lte\d to: full time regularly employed drivers, casual

mtermlttent or _ccasmﬂgi drivers, leased drivers and independent owner-
\e,pi%rator contradtors who are either directly employed by, or under lease
fwho operate a commercial vehicle at the direction of, or

w1th gjgpnsen- ) W ‘the Agency. Forthe purposes of pre-employment/pre-

Agency to'd;j;e?a commercial vehicle.
ECS - Employee Counseling Service

Evidential Breath Testing (EBT) Device — A device approved by the
National Highway Traffic Safety Administration (NHTSA) for the evidential
testing of breath and placed on the NHTSA'’s “Conforming Products List of
Evidential Breath Measurement Devices” (CPL).



Extended Medical Family Leave — An absence from work of thirty
calendar days or more by an employee because of medical, physiological
or physical disability on the part of the employee and/or a family member.

Fit for Duty — An employee is fit for duty when he/she is unequivocally
able to perform his/her job duties, including when he/she is ready to work
or working, without the presence of any alcohol or any specified drugs or
their metabolites as prescribed by this Drug and Alcohol Policy.

Follow-up Testing — Unannounced drug and aleqhol testing given to
employees who have returned to duty after management referral to the
Employee Assistance Program (EAP). This t f{e of test may be done up
to a total of five years form the date the e%pie{eq returns to duty. A
minimum of six tests during the first twelvg hwnths wj!! be required.

GC/MS - Gas chromatography/mass sPe’ctrometry, whlcl\is the second or

confirmatory test for the positive test. T |s is consmigi‘ed the most
accurate and reliable test techmqn]e\ﬁuaﬂable <

Hydrocodone (Oxycodone_l A néreetlc analgesic that will cause a
decrease in heart rate, brgaltﬁng and brain aetlwty Brand names include
Percodan and Percocet. e \

\ \\ HL\ K“‘ ‘-- P
lllegal Use — Useof.any llleg \I dpﬁ misqss ofTegaIIy prescribed drugs,
and use of |IIe§aHy Ghtglqed pre§brip’tlon drugs?

Incident < A/smgle e)}eﬂt or océqn‘ence which triggers drug and alcohol
test, as def‘n@&tms Ppo b

/Maﬂjtlaﬁa —@ee{'aannablnonds i

Medlcally Aut 9 |ze3 f« prescription or other writing from a licenses
“physician or daptlst forthe use of a drug in the course of medical
treat?nent includi )13 the use of methadone in a certified drug program.

Medleé he iéw’ Officer (MROP) — An Agency authorized licensed
phyS|C|an rged?cal doctor or doctor of osteopathy responsible for receiving
laboratory drug test results, who has knowledge of substance abuse
disorders and appropriate medical training to interpret and evaluate an
individuals confirmed positive test result together with his/her medical
history and any other relevant biomedical information.

Metabolite — A modified form of a drug that has been chemically altered
by the body’s metabolic system.



On Duty — An employee is “on duty” or “subject to duty” within the
meaning of this provision:

e On his/her regularly scheduled shift.

e From the time he/she arrives on the property until the time he/she
completes his/her work assignments and leaves the property.

o When reporting for a physical at the Agency designated site.
e When the employee has volunteered or, has Been assigned extra
work on his/her day off, vacation, etc. 4
,f r‘n'\.\‘ \""-.\
e While on an “on-call” status or prior. toffhe sta of duty, when told in
advance, that he/she is expe%ffbe on duty \hqme point in the

future. 4 ™

>

\.
/ 4 N

e When involved with Agency mess w’h ie not on Ageney property.
N

e Four (4) hours prigr t&duty du\Tng *whlch alcohol consumption is
prohibited. \ \x . :

Opiates — Narcgtlg; drugs whlch dep,ra ’fhh;}functions and reactions
and in large déses)may cause uphoria._Ihcludes Opium, Morphine,
Codeine, /erein’ Demirel and ‘Paﬁg;odan to name a few.

Over-the Gounter -4 eihdes me\d{eatlons that can be purchased without
a prescnptlcv)\'t\But jw’h;c ntain, gwhol derivatives or other drugs which
' affect an- inélwdual physiologically (cold medicines, back pain

/mfeilevers “a(érqy tab]ets etc.)

N
i"hencychdme =A drﬁg gvhlch acts simultaneously as both a depressant

\a \hallucinoge ﬂnd often produces extreme mood shifts. Often called
PCF’R‘L itis usually séld as a powder and may be mixed with marijuana.

. /
Posmc&ﬂg/ bf Test — The presence of alcohol in the body at a
concentratiap-of 0.040 or greater as measured by an Evidential Breath
Testing (EBT) device. Refusal to take a breath test without a valid
medical explanation also constitutes a positive alcohol test.

Reasonable Suspicion — When specific, contemporaneous, articulatable
observations concerning the appearance, behavior, speech, or body odor
of the safety-sensitive-employee, as presented to the trained supervisor,
establishes “reasonable suspicion” to conclude that substance use may be
causing the behavior.



Safety-Sensitive Functions —Safety-sensitive function means all time
from the time a driver begins to work or is required to be in readiness to
work until the time he/she is relieved from work and all responsibility for
performing work. Safety-sensitive functions shall include:

(1) All time at an employer or shipper plant, terminal, facility, or other
property, or on any public property, waiting to be dispatched, unless the
driver has been relieved from duty by the employer:

(2) All time inspecting equipment as required b 92.7 and 392.8 of this
subchapter or otherwise inspecting, serwcm r_conditioning _any

commercial motor vehicle at any time; y <'

/
(3) All time spent at the driving controli;gf g@omﬁg@al motor vehicle in
operation;

\
Sy
/ "- '\

(4) All time, other than drlvmg_m in_or upon any co iercial motor
vehicle except time spent resting ‘l‘n_‘ Aerth (a berth canpforming to

remaining in in_readiness tO '_ vehi "_ﬂ;f in_giving or receivinq
receipts for shipments aded; a2

(6) All tlme/r airing, \_}L
upon a dfs

Self-Referral — An employee is considered a voluntary self-referral if
he/she has not incurred discipline at the Final Warning Step (within a two
(2) year period) of the Agency's disciplinary procedure. Voluntary
participation at ECS will not adversely impact an individual's employment



or promotional opportunities at the Agency. However, employees who do
not make a conscientious attempt to overcome their drug and/or alcohol
problems may experience performance problems as a result, and in that
case will be subject to disciplinary action based on poor job performance,
or as a result of a positive drug and/or alcohol screen, and will no longer
be considered a voluntary self-referral.

Substance Abuse Professional (SAP) — A SAP can be (1) licensed
physician (Medical Doctor or Doctor of Osteopathy), or a licensed or
certified psychologist, social worker, or employee g/sajstance professional,
with knowledge of and clinical experience in diagngsis and treatment of
drug and alcohol related disorders; of (2) adq_iti{an;s" counselor certified by
the National Association of Alcoholism’ Pryg, Abuse Counselors
Certification Commission, (3) Must have SAP cert"fﬁ@t_ipn, which includes
Federal DOT Rules and Regulations. &

Unfit for Duty — An employee is unfiff for duty when hefshe is not “Fit for
Duty” as defined previously. y h N

RS PN o
N, A 9

Use — The presence of any cont“r\bij"efa_ﬂgﬁbsf/ance in the bgdy, or the
consumption of any beyerage, mixtﬁfzg or preparation, including any
medication containing alcﬁ@g\%ﬁ:—-x\_&x

- |
\1__\ . e,
B e
y b A 1‘_._// \"“-‘. >
’(Jr' J.’_J-- H\ ‘ \ "/, o
- 5 A ! '-.l il
A )
& B
<. .. ©
h N B 4
jpe— - .'\.rf /,-»_._ B 4l 5 '.j;.\/
P S, \ e ey
£ ey i,
“-\_ \\.‘ < -,.\....
\i\ .
b : \\ A\
k. ,% ||
{1, |
1\1_ \“‘e I;’/ 4
\\\ B P 4
. T
\\



Bighorn-Desert View Water Agency

Board of Directors Agency Office
Michael McBride, President 622 S, Jemez Trail
Judy Corl-Lorono, Vice President Yucca Valley, CA 92284-1440
Terry Burkhart, Secretary
J. Larry Coulombe, Director 760/364-2315 Phone
J. Dennis Staley, Director 760/364-3412 Fax
Marina D West, P.G., General Manager

A Public Agency www.bdvwa.org

Finance/Public Relations/Education
And Personnel Commiittee
Special Meeting Report
Board Meeting Office

1720 N. Cherokee Trail, Landers, CA 92285
Wednesday, July 25, 2018 - 9:00 a.m.

Committee Members: Michael McBride & Larry Coulombe

Call to Order
President McBride called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m.
Pledge of Allegiance
Led by Judy Corl-Lorono
Roll Call
Directors: Michael McBride
Larry Coulombe
Staff: Marina West

Seth Kish

Approval of the Agenda
President McBride and Director Coulombe approved the agenda as presented.

2018 Employee Handbook Update

General Manager West gave the staff report. The Employee Handbook was last updated in
2012. As can be expected, laws change over time that affect the Employee and the Employer
and thus require updates from time-to-time. She noted that all additions and deletions are
readily visible in the document. General Manager West explained all of the recommended
changes made inside the new Employee Handbook.

Public comment: None

Report for July 25, 2018 FPREP Committee Meeting
Approved on September 19, 2018
Page 1 of 2



Agency Organizational Structure — Review Proposed Organizational Charts
General Manager West gave the staff report. The organizational structure was last updated in
2015 just prior to the annexation of Improvement District Goat Mountain. That change added
two full time staff to the field operations. After three years, there is now a better understanding
of overall resource needs to more efficiently and effectively manage the field operations. In
addition, since 2015 two full time administrative positions have been vacated and one remains
unfilled due to the need for a new analysis of the Agency's overall administrative needs.
General Manager West presented two different organizational structures for the committee to
consider. General Manager West said the organizational structure will undergo further review
with the updated employee handbook.
Public comment: None
Consent Items

a. FPREP Committee Meeting Minutes, May 16 , 2018
Public comment: None
President McBride and Director Coulombe approved the minutes.
Public Comment Period
No public comment.

Verbal Reports
None

General Manager’'s Report
None

Items for Next Agenda
Adjournment — President McBride adjourned the meeting at 10:12 a.m.

Approved by:

Michael McBride, Committee Chair

Report for July 25, 2018 FPREP Committee Meeting
Approved on September 19, 2018
Page 2 of 2



